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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Honorable Jesse Washington, Mayor 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 

Town of Delhi, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, and each major fund of the Town of Delhi, Louisiana (the 
"Town"), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021 , and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors 
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, and each major fund information of the Town as of September 30, 2021, and the 
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis, and budgetary comparison information, the 
schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability, the schedule of pension 
contributions, and accompanying notes be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic fmancial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements. The schedule of 
compensation, benefits and other payments to the agency head, schedule of compensation 
paid to the members of the board of aldermen, the schedule of insurance in force, and 
justice system funding schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not a required part of the basic fmancial statements. 

The schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to the agency head, schedule 
of compensation paid to the members of the board of aldermen, and justice system funding 
schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and related directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic fmancial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic fmancial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, schedule of compensation, benefits and 
other payments to the agency head, schedule of compensation paid to the members of the 
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board of aldermen, and justice system funding schedules are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The schedule of insurance in force has not been subject to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government AuditinK Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
March 22, 2022, on our consideration of the Town of Delhi, Louisiana's internal control 
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report 
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Delhi, Louisiana's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

p. 1(/alffl & (!o,,,pa-,, //Pe 
Lake Charles, Louisiana 
March 22, 2022 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART I 



TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) for the Town of Delhi is designed to: 

I. Assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues. 

2. Provide an overview of the To'wn's financial activities. 

3. Identify changes in the Town's overall financial position and results of operations and assist the 
user in detennining whether financial position has improved or deteriorated as a result of the 
year's operations. 

4. Identify any significant variations from the original, amended, and final budget amounts and 
include any currently known reasons for those variations that are expected to have a significant 
effect on future serv~ces or liquidity; and 

5. Identify individual fund issues or concerns. 

As management of the Town of Delhi, we offer readers of the Financial Statements this narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2021. The Town began this new reporting model required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement Number 34 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004. 

The infonnation contained within this MD&A should be considered only as part of a greater whole. The 
readers of this statement should take time to read and evaluate all sections of this report, including the 
footnotes and other Required Supplemental Information (RSI) that is provided in addition to this MD&A. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The MD&A requires supplementary information that introduces the reader to the basic financial 
statements and provides an overview of the To'wn's financial activities. The To'wn's basic financial 
statements consist of the following components: 

I. Government-wide financial statements, 

2. Fund financial statements, and 

3. Notes to the financial statements. 

Other required supplementary information, including the required budgetary comparison schedule( s) are 
presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. A general description of the 
components of the basic financial statements follows below, 'w~th a more detailed analysis of the 
government-wide statements included in a later section entitled "Government-wide Financial Analysis". 

1. Government-wide Financial Statements 

The Government-wide Financial Statements are designed by GASB Statement No. 34 to 
present the financial operations of the Town as a whole in a fonnat similar to private sector 
companies. All governmental and business-type activities are consolidated into columns which 
add to a total for the Primary Government. The focus is on the government-wide (entity-wide) 

4 



TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

(Continued) 

"Statement of Net Position" and "Statement of Activities" to give the reader a broad overview 
of the To'wn's financial position and results of operations. 

a. The Statement of Net Position presents information on the Town's assets and liabilities 
using the accrual basis of accounting, in a mauner similar to the accounting used by private 
business enterprises. The difference between the assets and liabilities is reported as net 
position. Over time, the increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or weakening. 

b. The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net 
position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported 
as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of 
the related cash flows. TI1e fonnat for the Statement of Activities presents the expenses for 
each function (general government, public safety, public works and streets) reduced by the 
Program Revenues ( charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital 
grants and contributions) directly related to each respective function, to determine net costs 
of each function. The net costs of each function are normally covered by general revenues. 

2. Fund Financial Statements 

The fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
and legal requirements. The Town of Delhi uses two categories of funds to account for financial 
transactions: governmental funds, and proprietary funds. 

Governmental funds are used to account for most of the basic services and projects reported as 
governmental activities in the govennnent-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on how 
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances that are left at year-end that are 
available for spending. These funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The 
govennnental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Town's general 
government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps 
you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near 
future to finance the Town's programs. The Town of Delhi's governmental funds include the 
following: 

a. General Fund is used for accounting for the Town's basic services. 
b. Special Revenue Fund - Sales Tax Fund is used for accounting for the receipts and 

disbursements of the sales tax monies. 
c. Capital Projects Fund is used for accounting for financial transactions under a Louisiana 

Community Development Block Grant. 
d. Debt Service Fund is used for accounting for the transfers and payments of monies used to 

retire debt of the Town. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

(Continued) 

The Proprietary Fund accounts for water and sewer services for the Town of Delhi. Enterprise 
funds are used to account for the same functions as business-type activities presented iu the 
government-wide financial statements, but the fund presentation provides more details. 

Because the focus of govermuental funds is narrower than that of the govermnent-wide 
financial statements, there are differences in the information presented for govermuent funds 
and for governmental activities in the govermnent-wide financial statements. Review of these 
differences provides the reader of the financial statement's insight on the long-term impact of 
the Town's more immediate decisions on the current use of financial resources. Whereas the 
total column on the enterprise fund financial statements is the same as the business-type column 
of the govermuent-wide financial statements, the govermuental funds columns of the fund 
financial statements require and include a reconciliation following the balance sheet and the 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. 

3. Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. When reviewing this MD&A, the reader 
should also refer to and review the notes to the basic financial statements, as well as the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. 

4. Required Supplementary Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplemental infonnation concerning the Town's budget presentations. 
Budgetary comparison schedules are included as "Required Supplementary Infonnation (Part 
II)" for the general and special revenue funds. These schedules demonstrate compliance with 
the Town's adopted and final revised budget. 

Govermuent-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may, over time, serve as a useful indicator of a govermuent's financial 
condition. At the close of the most recent fiscal year, the Town's assets exceeded its liabilities by 
$26,869,701. 

The Town's net positions are comprised of $13,465,710 from governmental activities and $13,403,991 
from business-type activities. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

(Continued) 

The following is a condensed statement of the Town's net position as of September 30, 2021: 

Activities 

Assets: 
Current assets 

Restricted assets 

Capital assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Liabilities: 

Current liabilities 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Net Position: 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

Governmental 

$ 

Activities 

5,521,251 

545,734 

8,375,237 

14,442,222 

65,374 

161,487 

594,849 

756,336 

285,550 

8"175,237 

545,734 

4544 739 

7 

Business-Type 

$ 

Activities 

888,868 

3,568,674 

21975,725 

26,433,267 

1,911,639 

11117,637 

13,029,276 

9,888"195 

3,568,674 

(53,078) 

Primary 
Government 

$ 

Total 

6,410,119 

4,114,408 

30,350,962 

40,875,489 

65,374 

2,073,126 

11 712486 

13,785,612 

285,550 

18,263,632 

4,114,408 

4,491,661 

Percentage 

16% 

10% 

74% 

100% 

15% 

85% 

68% 

15% 

17% 



TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

(Continued) 

The Town's net position on September 30, 2020, was $12,797,483 for governmental Activities and 
$13,430,750 for Business-Type Activities. The following is a condensed statement of the Town's net 
position as of September 30, 2020: 

Activities 

Assets: 

Current assets 

Restricted assets 

Capital assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Liabilities: 

Current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Net Position: 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

Governmental 

Activities 

$ 5,138,369 

541,047 

8,392,542 

14,071,958 

180,851 

327,586 

981,362 

1,308,948 

146,377 

8,392,542 

541,047 

3,863,894 

$ 12,797,483 

Primary 

Business-Type Government 

Activities Total 

$ 350,898 $ 5,489,267 

3,744,757 4,285,804 

22,606,287 30,998,829 

26,701 ,942 40,773,900 

180,851 

1,157,428 1,485,014 

12,113,764 13,095,126 

13,271,192 14,580,140 

146,377 

9,540,109 17,932,651 

952,414 1,493,461 

2,938,227 6,802,121 

$ 13,430,750 $ 26,228,233 

Comparison of Net Position Fiscal Years 2021 and 2020 

50,000,000 

40,000,000 

30,000,000 

20,000,000 

10,000,000 

Total Assets Total Liabilities Total Net Position 

■ 2,021 ■ 2,020 
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Percentage 

13% 

11% 

76% 

100% 

10% 

90% 

100% 

68% 

6% 

26% 

100% 



TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

(Continued) 

The current ratio compares current assets to current liabilities and is an indication of the ability to pay 
cutTent obligations. The Town's cutTent ratio as of September 30, 2021, is 34.19 to 1 for governmental 
activities and 0.46 to I for business-type activities. The current ratio as of September 30, 2020, is 15.69 to 
I for governmental activities and 0.30 to I for business-type activities. The Town's overall current ratio 
is 3.09 to I as of September 30, 2021, and 3.70 to l as of September 30, 2020. These ratios indicate a 
good current financial position. 

The Town reported positive balances in net position for both governmental and business-type activities 
for the years ended September 30, 2021, and 2020. Net position increased in governmental activities by 
$668,227 and decreased in business-type activities by $26,759. The Town's total net position increased 
by 2.45% during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021. The Town's net position for the year ended 
September 30, 2020, increased in governmental activities by $699,074 and increased in business-type 
activities by $243,300. During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, total net position increased by 
3.73%.The largest category of net position is "Net Investment in Capital Assets" and comprises 68% of 
net position. This category reflects the total invested in capital assets (land, buildings, equipment, 
infrastructure, utility system improvements, etc.). These capital assets are used to provide services to 
citizens and do not represent resources available for future spending. 

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank} 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

(Continued) 

The following is a condensed statement of the Town's activities for the year ended September 30, 2021: 

Revenues: 
Program: 

Charges for services 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

General: 
Property tax 
Franchise tax 
Sales tax 
Beer tax 
Interest 
Other 

Total Revenues 

Program Expenses: 
General government 
Public safety: 
Recreation 
Streets 
Fees 
Interest 
Water and sewer 

Total Program Expenses 

Excess (Deficiency) 
Transfers In (Out) 
Change in Net Position 
Beginning Net Position 

Ending Net Position 

Beer tax 
0% 

Franchise tax 
1% 

Property tax 
4% 

Capital grants 
and 

contributions 
7% 

Operating 
grants and 

contributions 
1% 

2021 Revenues 
Interest 

0% 

Governmental Business-Type 

$ 

Activities 

537,301 
42,277 

411 ,378 

226,325 
82,296 

1,239,773 
4,349 
9,595 

187,580 

2,740,874 

1,465,287 
864,945 
20,012 

262,403 

2,612,647 

128,227 
540 000 
668,227 

12,797,483 

$13.465.710 

Other 
3% 

Activities 

$ 3,487,599 

$ 

12,529 
410 

3,500,538 

30,168 
245,126 

2,712,003 

2,987,297 

513,241 
(540,000) 
(26,759) 

13,430,750 

13.403.991 

Total Percentage 

$ 4,024,900 
42,277 

411 ,378 

226,325 
82,296 

1,239,773 
4,349 

22,124 
187,990 

6,241,412 

1,465,287 
864,945 

20,012 
262,403 

30,168 
245,126 

2,712,003 

5,599,944 

641 ,468 

641 ,468 
26,228,233 

$ 26.869.701 

2021 Expenses 

General 
1overnment 

26l6 

64.5% 
0.7% 
6.6% 

3.6% 
1.3% 

19.9% 
0.1% 
0.4% 
3.0% 

100% 

25.2% 
15.4% 
0.4% 
4.7% 
0.5% 
4.4% 

49.4% 

100% 

__ Streets 

Interest 
4% 

Fees-- Recreation 5% 
1% 0% 



TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

(Continued) 

The following is a condensed statement of the Town's activities for the year ended September 30, 2020: 

Governmental Business-Type 

Revenues: Activities Activities Total Percentage 

Program: 
Charges for services $ 567,069 $ 3,472,777 s 4,039,846 66.2% 
Operating grants and contributions 62,921 6,400 69,321 LI% 

Capital grants and contributions 271,250 271,250 4.4% 
General: 

Property tax 216,054 216,054 3.5~/o 

Sales tax 1,192,144 1,192,144 19.5% 

Franchise tax 72,943 72,943 1.2% 

Beer tax 4,726 4,726 0.1 ~/0 

Interest 19,484 30,559 50,043 0.8% 
Other 185,717 185,717 3.0% 

Total Revenues 2 592 308 3 509 736 6 102 044 100.0% 

Program Expenses: 

General goven1ment 1,612,032 1,612,032 31.2% 
Public safetv: 738,888 738,888 14.3% 

Streets 333,439 333,439 6.5% 

Recreation 21,286 21,286 0.4% 
Fees 32,890 32,890 0.6~0 

Interest 275,530 275,530 5.3~/o 

Water and sewer 2 145 605 2,145,605 41.6% 

Total Program Expenses 2 705,645 2 454 0?5 5 159 670 100% 

Excess (Deficiency) (113,337) 1,055,711 942,374 

Transfers In (Out) 812411 (812,411) 
Change in Net Position 699,074 243,300 942,374 

Beginning Net Position 12 098 409 13 187 450 25 ?85 859 

Ending Net Position $12 797 483 $ 13 430 750 s 26 228 233 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

(Continued) 

_ Other 
Beertax---..._,_ 2020 Revenues 

0% " ---

.,,,---- 3% 2020 Expenses 
Interest _,,. _,,_. 

Franchise tax _ 1% ,,...,,---1% ...... _______ ---

Property tax -......_ 
4% . 

capital grants 
and 

contributions 
4% 

Operating 
grants and 

contribut\ons 
1% 

Interest _ 
5% 

General 
sovemment 

319' 

The Condensed Statement of Activities presents revenues, expenses, and changes in net position 
separately for governmental activities and business-type activities. The condensed format allows for 
presentation of Program Revenues (Charges for Services, Operating Grants and Contributions, and 
Capital Grants and Contributions) followed by a listing of General Revenues to support the Town's 
overall governmental or business-type activities. Expenses are presented on a functional basis. As noted 
above, there are two categories of revenues on the Statement of Activities - "Program Revenues" and 
"General Revenues". "Program Revenues" derive directly from the program itself or from parties outside 
the Town's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; they reduce the net cost of the function to be financed from 
the government's "General Revenues". "Program Revenues" are further divided into Charges for 
Services, Operating Grants and Contributions, and Capital Grants and Contributions. The major revenues 
in governmental activities for the Town in the Charges for Services sub-category are $43,531 for police 
and court fines, $303,995 for garbage collection, and $233,306 for occupational licenses for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2021, and $54,028 for police and court fines, $300,221 for garbage collection, 
and $212,820 for occupational licenses for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. Revenues in the 
Operating Grants and Contributions sub-category consist of $42,277 and $69,23 1 for the fiscal years 
ended September 30, 2021, and 2020, respectively. The revenues required to be reported provided for 
supplemental police pay, with the balance consisting primarily of intergovernmental grants for 
community development, reimbursement for highway maintenance, and fire insurance rebates. Revenues 
in the Capital Grants and Contributions sub-category consist of $411,378 and $271,250 for the fiscal 
years ended September 30, 2021, and 2020, respectively. "Revenues" include all revenues not required to 
be reported as "Program Revenues". All taxes are to be reported by type. The major tax revenues for the 
Town of Delhi are sales tax revenues of $1,239,773, property taxes of $226,325, and franchise taxes of 
$82,296 for the year ended September 30, 2021. The major tax revenues for the year ended September 30, 
2020, are sales tax revenues of $1,192,144, property taxes of $216,054, and franchise taxes of $72,943. 
Other "General Revenues" reported for the year ended September 30, 2021 , includes $4,349 in beer tax, 
and $105,398 in rents and $38,651 other miscellaneous revenues. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

(Continued) 

"Program Expenses" for the governmental funds are presented in the above Condensed Statement of 
Activities by function and total $2,612,647 and $2,705,645 (including interest on long-term debt) for the 
fiscal years ended September 30, 2021, and 2020, respectively. 

Business-Type Activities provided by the Town of Delhi consists of water and sewer utilities. All 
revenues are in the category of "Program Revenues", with the exceptions of interest income and 
miscellaneous income reported as "General Revenue". "Program Revenues" in the Charges for Services 
sub-category consists of billings of $3,487,599 for water and sewer for the year ended September 30, 
2021, and $3,472,776 for water and sewer for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. 

The Town reports the total amount of expenses for operation of the utility system as $2,987,297 and 
$2,454,025 for the years ended September 30, 2021, and 2020, respectively. The "Change in Net 
Position" (revenues less expenses) for the utility system was negative $26,759 and $246,300 for the fiscal 
years ended September 30, 2021, and 2020, respectively. 

Capital Assets and Long-Tenn Debt 

The TO\vn's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for governmental and business­
type activities as of September 30, 2021, was $8,375,236 and $21,975,726, respectively, and $8,392,541 
and $22,606,288, respectively, as of September 30, 2020. For the year ended September 30, 2021, net 
investment for governmental type activities decreased by 0.2% while net investment for business-type 
activities decreased by 3%. For the year ended September 30, 2020, net investment for governmental type 
activities increased by I% while net investment for business-type activities decreased by 3%. There was 
an overall decrease in capital asset investment for the To'.vn as a whole of 2% and 2% for the years ended 
September 30, 2021, and September 30, 2020, respectively. More detailed information about Town's 
capital assets is presented in notes 4. 

As of September 30, 2021, and 2020, the Town had total bond indebtedness in the amount of $12,087,330 
and $13,066,178, respectively, a decrease of7%. The Town will incur $778,913 in interest and fees over 
the next five years in connection with the 2006 sewer revenue bond issue. The Town will incur $197,928 
of interest and fees over the next five years in connection with the 2021 sewer revenue refunding bonds 
issue. The To'.vn will incur an estimated $873,920 of interest and fees over the next five years in 
connection with the 2010 water revenue bond issue. More detailed information about the Town's 
certificates of indebtedness and bond indebtedness is presented in note 6. 

Required Supplementary Infonnation 

In addition to this MD&A and the basic financial statements, this report also presents certain required 
supplementary information. This required supplementary information for the Town of Delhi includes the 
budgetary comparison schedule for the general fund, and special revenue fund. The presentation under 
the GASE 34 standard requires disclosure of both the original and the final budget. The m~ginal budget is 
the first complete appropriated budget. The final budget is the original budget adjusted by all reserves, 
transfers, allocations, supplemental appropriations, and other legally authorized legislative and executive 
changes applicable to the fiscal year, whenever signed into law or otherwise legally authorized. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

(Continued) 

Contacting the Town's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances, comply with 
finance-related laws and regulations, and demonstrate the Town's commitment to public accountability. 
If you have questions about this report or would like to request additional information, contact the Town's 
clerk at Town of Delhi, Louisiana. 

Mayor, Town of Delhi, Louisiana 
(318)488-0138 

14 
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TO\VN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
September 30, 2021 

Primary Government 
Governmental Busmess-type 

Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents s 4,592,230 $ 652,368 s 5,244,598 

Investments 720,680 720.680 

Receivables. net 198.778 240,260 439,038 

Prepaid Insurance 4.062 1,741 5,803 

Internal Balances 5,501 (5.501) 

Total Current Assets 5,521.251 888,868 6.410,119 

Non-Current Assets: 

Restricted Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 157.796 2,618,158 2,775,954 

Investments 387.938 950,516 1.338,454 

Capital Assets: 

Land 284,161 10.718 294.879 

Depreciable (net) 8,091,076 21,965,007 30,056,083 

Total Non-Clment Assets 8.920,971 25,544.399 34,465.370 

Total Assets 14,442,222 26,433,267 40.875,489 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred outflows of Resomces Related to Net Pension Liability 65.374 65,374 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 14.507,596 26,433,267 40,940.863 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 146.782 280,091 426.873 

Accrned Expenses 14,705 8,213 22.918 

Unearned Revenue 516.869 516.869 

Customer Deposits 136.773 136.773 

CmTent Pmtion of Bonds Payable 969,693 969.693 

Total CmTent Liabilities 161,487 1,911.639 2,073.126 

Non-Current Liabilities: 

Bonds Payable after One Year 11,117.637 11,117.637 

Cornperu,ated Absences 44,680 44.680 

Net Pension Liability 550.169 550,169 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 594,849 11,117.637 11,712.486 

Total Liabilities 756,336 13,029.276 13,785.612 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Inflows of Recourses Related to Net Pension Liability 285.550 285.550 

NET POSITIOJ\' 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 8,375,237 9,888,395 18,263,632 

Restricted for: 

Debt Service 969.693 969.693 

Capital Project 545,734 2,598.981 3,144.715 

Unrestricted 4,544,739 {53,078) 4,491,661 

Total Net Position 13.465,710 13,403.991 26,869.701 

Total Liabilities. Deferred Inflows of Resources. and Net Position s 14,507,596 $ 26,433,267 s 40,940,863 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Functions/Programs 
Primary Government: 

Governmental Activities: 

General Government 
Public Safety: 

Streets 

Recreation 
License and Pem1its 

Garbage Collection 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities: 

Water and Sewer 
Fees 

Interest and Fees on Long-term Debt 

Total Business-type Activities 

Total P:rimaiy Government 

TO\VN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

PROGRAM REVENUES 

OPERATING CAPITAL 

NET (EXPENSE) REVE:> cJE AND 

CHk',GES IN NET POSillON 

PRIIv1ARY GOVERNiv1ENT 

CHARGES 

FOR 
SERVICES 

GRANTSAND GRANTSA...~D GOVERNME~IAL BUSINESS-TYPE 
EXPENSES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTI\tTIES TOTALS 

s 1,465,287 $ $ 42,277 S 411,378 $ (1,011,632) $ $ (1,011,632) 

864,945 

262,403 

20,012 
233,306 

303,995 

2,612,647 537,301 42,277 

2,712,003 3,471,413 

30,168 14,499 

245,126 1,687 

2,987,297 3,487,599 

S 5,599,944 $ 4,024,900 

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Prope1iy Taxes 

Sales Taxes 
Franchise Fee 

Beer Tax 

Interest and Investment Income 
Other 
Transfers 

Total General Revenues and Transfers 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning 

Net Position, Ending 

411,378 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements, 
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(864,945) 

(262,403) 

(20,012) 
233,306 

303,995 

(1,621,691) 

(1,621,691) 

226,325 

1,239,773 
82,296 

4,349 

9,595 
187,580 
540,000 

2,289,918 

668,227 

12,797,483 

759,410 
(15,669) 

(243,439) 

500,302 

500,302 

12,529 
410 

(540,000) 

(527,061) 

(26,759) 

13,430,750 

$ 

(864,945) 

(262,403) 

(20,012) 
233,306 

303,995 

(1,621,691) 

759,410 

(15,669) 

(243,439) 

500,302 

(1,121,389) 

226,325 

1,239,773 
82,296 

4,349 

22,124 
187,990 

1,762,857 

641,468 

26,228,233 

26,869,701 



TO\VN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

BALANCE SHEETS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

September 30, 2021 

General Sales Tax Capital LCDBG 
Fund Fund Projects Fund Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,804,575 $2,787,555 $ $ 100 

Investlnents 86,288 634.392 

Receivables: 

Franchise Fees 26,689 

Fines Revenue 35,794 

Sales Tax 100544 

Rent and Royalties 6,972 

Grants 

Other 28,779 

Due from Other Funds 6,473 

Prepaid Insurance 3,947 115 

Restricted Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 157,796 

Investments 387,938 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,545,251 $3,522,606 $ $ 100 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

LIABILITIES 

Accmmts Payable $ 120,165 $ 26,617 $ $ 

Accrued Expenses 14,705 

Due to Other Funds 972 

Total Liabilities 135,842 26,617 

FUND BALANCE 
Restricted 545,734 
Assigned 3,495,989 100 
Unassigned 1,863,675 

Total Fund Balance 2,409,409 3,495,989 100 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

FUND BALANCE $ 2,545,251 $3,522,606 100 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements, 
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Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 4,592,230 

720,680 

26,689 

35,794 

100,544 

6,972 

28,779 

6,473 

4,062 

157,796 
387,938 

$ 6,067,957 

$ 146,782 

14,705 

972 

162,459 

545,734 
3,496,089 
1,863,675 

5,905,498 

$ 6,067,957 



TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
September 30, 2021 

Total fund balances for governmental funds at September 30, 2021 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position 

are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in 

the governmental funds. 

Land 
Buildings, net of accumulated depreciation 
Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 
lnfrastructure, net of accumulated depreciat10n 

The deferred outflows of contributions to retirement systems are not available 

resources, and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Long-term liabilities at September 30, 2021 

Compensated absences 

Net pension liability 

The deferred inflows of contributions to retirement systems are not payable from 
current expendable resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

284,161 
2,813,747 

279,338 
4,997,991 

$ 5,905,498 

8,375,237 

65 ,374 

(44,680) 

(550,169) 

(285 ,550) 

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 13,465 ,7 10 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TO\VN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Capital 
General Sales Tax Projects LCDBG 

Ftmd Fund Fund Fund 
Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem $ 226,325 $ $ s 
Sale,; and Use 1,239,773 

Other Taxes, Penalties, Interest, etc. 94.230 

Licenses and Pennits 233.306 

Intergovernmental Revenues: 
State Funds: 

Trnnspmtation Funds 4,160 

Grants 411,378 

Police Supplemental Pay 38.117 
Fines 43.531 

Garbage Collection 303.995 

Investment Earnings 2,010 

Other Revenues 
Rent l05,398 
Miscellaneous 38.651 

Total Revenues 1,499.091 1,241.783 

Expenditures: 
General Government 932.316 82.110 

Public Safety 562,988 301,957 

Streets 262,403 

Recreation 20,012 
Capital Outlay 563.005 2.415 

Total Expenditures 2,320,712 406.494 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (l;nder) Expenditures (821,621) 835,289 

Other Financing Sources (Lses) 
Transfers In 876,772 8,610 
Transfers Out (336.772) (8,610) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 876.772 (328.162) (8,610) 

~t't Change in Fund Balant't' 55,151 507,127 (8,610) 

Fund Balances - Beginning 2,354,258 2,988,862 8,610 

Fund Balancl'S - Ending $ 2,409.409 $ 3,495,989 $ s 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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l00 

100 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 226.325 

1.239,773 

94,230 
233,306 

4,160 

411-378 

38,117 

43,531 

303,995 

2.0IO 

I 05.398 
38,651 

2,740,874 

L014,426 

864,945 

262,403 

20,012 

565,420 

2,727,206 

13,668 

885.382 
(345,382) 

540,000 

553.668 

5.351.830 

$ 5,905,498 



TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVEl'ITES, 
EXPEl'l~ITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Net Changes in Fund Balances, Total Governmental Funds 

Arnmmts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of 

Activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, 

in the government-wide statement of activities the cost of those 

assets is allocated over their estimated usefol lives as depreciation 
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeds capital outlays. 

Capital outlay 
Deprecation expense 

The liability tmd expense for compensated absences are not reported in governmental 

fimds. Instead, pay1nents for compensated absences are reported as salaries 
when they occur. Only the p;:iyment consumes cunent financial resources and it 

would take ;:i catastrophic event for this liability to become a current liability. 

Net pension (expense) benefit not requiring the use of cnnent economic 

resources, and therefore, are not recorded as a fund expenditure. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

565,420 
(579,145) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 553,668 

(B,725) 

18,658 

109,626 

$ 668,227 



ASSETS 

Current Assets: 

TO\VN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

September 30, 2021 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Receivables - User Charges, net 

Prepaid Insurance 
Due from Other Funds 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets: 

Restricted Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 

Capital Assets: 
Non-depreciable 
Depreciable, net 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 

Accured Payroll Liability 
Unearned Revenue 

Customer Deposits 

Due to Other Funds 
Current Portion of Bonds Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities: 
Bonds Payable, after one year 

Total Liabilities 

'.'/ET POSITIO'.'I 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 

Restricted Net Position 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

Total Liabilities and Net Position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements, 
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$ 652,368 
240,260 

1,741 
972 

895,341 

2,618,158 
950,516 

10,718 
21,965,007 

25,544,399 

26,439,740 

280,091 

8213 
516,869 

136,773 
6,473 

969,693 

1,918,112 

11,117,637 

13,035,749 

9,888,395 

3,568,674 
(53,078) 

13,403,991 

S 26,439,740 



TO\VN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Enterprise Fund 
Water System 

Operating Revenues 
User Charges $ 3,471,413 
Fees 14,499 
Other 1,687 

Total Operating Revenues 3,487,599 

Operating Expenses 
Salaries, Wages and Employee Benefits 380,302 
Contractual Services, Materials and Supplies 696,530 
Depreciation Expense 752,564 
Insurance and Other Expenses 882,607 

Total Operating Expenses 2,712,003 

Operating Income 775,596 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Gain on Sale of Captial Assets 410 
Income on Investments 12,529 
Administrative Fees on Bonds Payable (30,168) 
Interest Expense on Bonds Payable (245,126) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (262,355) 

Income Before Contributions and Transfers 513,241 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Transfers (Out) (540,000) 

Total Other Financial Sources (Uses) (540,000) 

Change in Net Position (26,759) 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 13,430,750 

Net Position, End of Year $ 13,403,991 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TO\VN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Receipts from Customers and Users 
Payments to Suppliers 
Payments to Employees 
Other Operating Payments 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities 
Due from Other Funds 
Due to Other Funds 
Transfers to Other Funds 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non capital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Interest Expenses 
Purchase of Capital Assets 
Sale of Capital Assets 
Administrative fees on Bonds Payable 
Received on Debt Borrm,~ngs 
Repayment of Long-term Debt 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Change in Investment 
Interest Income 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

Enterprise Fund 
Water System 

$ 

$ 

3,487,599 
(465,719) 
(380,302) 
(268,160) 

2,373,418 

972 
(6,473) 

(540,000) 

(545,501) 

(245,126) 
(122,001) 

410 
(30,168) 

44,566 
(1,091,697) 

(1,444,016) 

(5,139) 
12,529 

7,390 

391,291 

2,879,235 

3,270,526 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TO\VN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) 
by Operating Activities: 

Operating Income 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash 

Used by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 
Change in Assets and Liabilities: 

Decrease in account receivables 

Decrease in prepaid insurance 
Increase in accounts payables 

Decrease in accrued expenses 

Increase in uneained revenue 
Increase in customer deposits 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Reconciliation of Total Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Current Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Resti~cted Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

( continued) 
Enterprise Fund 

Water System 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

775,596 

752,564 

105,485 
2,840 

218,374 

(1,329) 
516,869 

3,019 

2,373,418 

652,368 
2,618,158 

3,270,526 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying financial statements of the Town of Delhi (Town) have been prepared in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. GAAP includes 
all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. In the government­
wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for the proprietary funds, Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions 
on or before November 30, 1989, have been applied unless those pronouncements conflict with or 
contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. The accounting and reporting 
framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this 
note. 

The To'.vn follows GASB Statement No.34 Basic Financial Statements - and lvfanagement's Discussion 
and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. Certain of the significant features of the Statement 
include the following: 

• A Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section is provided which includes an 
analysis of the Town's overall financial position and results of operations. 

• Financial statements are prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the Town's activities, 
including infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc.); and 

• Fund financial statements with a focus on the major funds. 

Financial Reporting Entity 

The Town was incorporated under the Lawrason Act and operates under a Mayor-Board of Aldermen 
form of government. This report includes all funds that are controlled by or dependent on the Town's 
executive and legislative branches (the Mayor and Board of Aldermen). Control by or dependence on the 
Town was determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, authority to issue debt, election 
or appointment of governing body and other general oversight responsibility. 

As the municipal governing authority, for reporting purposes, the Town of Delhi, Louisiana is considered 
a separate financial reporting entity. The financial repmting entity consists of (a) the primary government 
(municipality), (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, (c) other 
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are 
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete, and ( d) organizations that are closely related to, or financially integrated with the primary 
government. 

Section 2100 of the 2011 Governmental According Standards Board (GASB) Codification of 
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, "Defining the Financial Reporting Entity" 
establishes criteria for determining which entities should be considered a component unit and, as such part 
of the reporting entity for financial reporting purposes. The basic criteria are as follows: 

I. Legal status of the potential component unit including the right to incur its own debt, levy its 
own taxes and charges, expropriate property in its own name, sue and be sued, and the right 
to buy, sell and lease property in its o'.vn name. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

2. Whether the primary govermnent's authority (Mayor and Board of Alderman) appoints a 
majority of board members of the potential component unit and is able to impose its will on 
potential component unit or whether the potential component unit is fiscally dependent on the 
primary govermnent. 

3. Financial benefit/burden relationship between the primary government and the potential 
component unit. 

4. The nature and significance of the relationship between the potential component units "~th 
the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial 
statements to be misleading. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (GWFS i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) display information about the reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the 
reporting entity. The statements distinguish between govermnental and business-type activities. 
Govermnental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovermnental revenues, and other non­
exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external 
parties for goods or services. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the 
business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town's govermnental activities. Direct 
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly 
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the 
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted 
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not 
classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

The Town reports all direct expenses by function in the statement of activities. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with the function. Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function 
and is included in the direct expense of each function. Interest on long-term debt is considered an indirect 
expense and is reported separately on the statement of activities. 

The content and cet1ain titles of the GWFS were changed upon the adoption in the cutTent fiscal year of 
GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Defe1Ted Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position. This statement provides reporting guidance for deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources, and adds them, when applicable, as elements of the GWFS 
because they are distinct from assets and liabilities. In addition, because these additional elements may 
affect the residual amount of all of the elements presented in a statement of financial position, GASB 63 
renames that measure as net position rather than net assets. The Town had deferred outflows of resources 
related to net pension liability in the amount of $65,374 and deferred inflows related to net pension 
liability of $285,550 at September 30, 2021. No reclassifications affecting the statement of net position 
from the prior period are required. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds. A fund is a separate accounting entity with 
a self-balancing set of accounts. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual 
funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities 
are controlled. The various funds of the Town are classified into two categories: governmental and 
proprietary. The emphasis on fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, 
each displayed in a separate column. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the 
Town or meets the following criteria: 

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or 
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or 
type: and 

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental or 
enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the con-esponding total for all governmental and enterprise 
funds combined. 

Go1'ernmentol Funds 

• General Funds - This fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

• Special Revenue Funds - These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources ( other than special assessments, expendable trusts, or major capital projects) that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

• Debt Service Funds - These funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and 
the payments of, general long-tenn debt principal, interest and related costs. 

• Capital Projects Funds - These funds are used to account for the financial resources used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. 

• Enterprise Fund - This fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in 
a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that 
the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges, or (b) where the governing body has decided that 
periodic detennination of revenues earned, expenses incun-ed, and/or net income is appropriate 
for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. 

The Enterprise Fund (Water System) is accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" basis. 
This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncun-ent) associated with its activity are 
included on its balance sheet. Its reported fund equity (net total position) is segregated into contributed 
capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases 
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total position. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

lvfeasurement Focus, Basis o{Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within the various 
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the 
timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. 
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt sen~ce expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences 
and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period. Only the portion of special assessment receivable due with the current fiscal period is considered 
to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. 

The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 
earned, and expenses are recognized when the liability is incurred, or economic asset used. Proprietary 
funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Operating revenues for the Town's proprietary fund 
consist of charges to customers and users of its water services. Operating expenses for the Town's 
proprietary fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on 
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 

Since the fund level statements are presented using a different measurement focus and basis of accounting 
than the government-wide statements, a reconciliation is presented on the page following each fund level 
statement that sunnnarizes the adjustments necessary to convert the fund level statements into the 
government-wide presentations. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated 
from the government-wide financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Inter-fund Balances (Due From to Other Funds) 

Inter-fund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbnrsements or transfers. Loans are 
reported as inter-fund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues 
and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when a fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate 
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other inter-fund transactions are 
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or enterprise funds are netted as part of the 
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. 

Resources belonging to particular funds are cmmnonly shared with other funds that need access to 
additional resources. When resources are provided without the expectation of repayment, the transaction 
is reported as a transfer and is treated as a source of income by the recipient fund and as an expenditure 
by the providing fund. 

In the process of aggregating data for the statement of net position and the statement of activities, some 
amounts reported as inter-fund activity and balances in the funds were eliminated or reclassified. Inter­
fund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing up" effect on assets and 
liabilities within the govermnental activity's columns. 

Budgets and Budgetarv Accounting 

The Town follows these procedures m establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

I. In the month of September, the Mayor submits to the Board of Aldermen a proposed operating 
budget for the fiscal year connnencing the following October I. The operating budget includes 
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

2. Public hearings are conducted at Town Hall to obtain taxpayer comments. 

Prior to October I, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

3. The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; 
however, the Board of Aldermen must approve any revisions that alter the total expenditures of 
any fund. Therefore, the level of budgetary responsibility is by total appropriations; however, for 
report purposes, this level has been expanded to a functional basis. 

4. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the 
General Fund. 

5. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted and amended by the Board of Aldermen. 

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year; however, unexpended fund 
balances are used to fund expenditures of subsequent years. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Budgets for the General and Special Revenue funds are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

A consolidated bank account has been established into which most monies are deposited and from which 
most disbursements are made. In addition, investment purchases are charged, and maturities are deposited 
to the consolidated bank account. The purpose of this consolidation of bank accounts is to provide 
administrative efficiency and to maximize investment earnings. The account titled "Cash and cash 
equivalents" is therefore composed of a fund's pro rata share of the cash balance in the consolidated cash 
account as well as its pro rata share of certificates of deposit with maturities of three months or less and 
the Louisiana Asset Management Pool ("LAMP") account. Investment earnings are shared by each fund 
on a pro rata basis according to its average cash balance. 

At September 30, 2021 
Carrying _A.mount on 

Balance Sheet 

Bank Balances: 

a: Insured (FDIC) or collateralized 

with securities held by the entity 

or its agent in the entity's name 

b. Collaternlized with securities held by 

pledging financial institutions tmst 

department or agent in the entity's name 

c. Uncollateralized, including any securities 

held for the entity but not in the entity's name 

Total Bank Balances 

$ 

$ 

Cash Equivalents 

Certificates 

Cash of Deposit 

8.020,552 $ 

750,000 

9,475,046 

Investments 

Certificates 

Of Deposit Total 

$ 2,059.134 $ 10,079,686 

$ $ 750,000 

2,059,134 l l,534, 180 

$ 2,059.135 $ 12,284,181 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits ( or bank 
balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance, or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal 
agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all 
times must be equal to or greater than the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are 
held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually 
acceptable to both parties. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Even though the pledged securities may be considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions 
of GASB Statement 3, LSA-R.S. 39: 1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to 
advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the Town that the fiscal agent 
has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

A1arket A1utual Funds and Pooled Deposits 

Money market mutual funds and pooled deposits are stated at fair value based on quoted market values. 
The fair value of the deposits is determined on a weekly basis to monitor any variances between 
amortized cost and market value. Legally binding guarantees have not been obtained to support the value 
of the deposits as all are short-term, highly liquid securities. 

State statutes authorize the Town to invest in United States bonds, treasury notes and bills, or certificates 
or time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices 
in Louisiana. In addition, local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in Louisiana Asset 
Management Pool, Inc. ("LAMP"), a non-profit corporation formed by an initiative of the State Treasurer 
in 1993 and organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, which operates a local government 
investment pool. 

Receivables and due fi·om other Governments 

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet 
received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use taxes and 
franchise taxes. Business-type activities report customer's utility service receivables as their major 
receivables. Uncollectible utility service receivables are recognized as bad debts at the time information 
becomes available which would indicate the un-collectability of the particular receivable. Although the 
specific charge-off method is not in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), 
no allowance for uncollectible receivables is recorded due to immateriality at September 30, 2021. 
Unbilled utility service receivables resulting from utility services rendered between the date of meter 
reading and billing and the end of the month, are recorded at year-end. Revenues from grants are recorded 
as earned when eligibility requirements are met. 

Uncollectab/e Allowance 

Uncollectible receivables for ad valorem taxes and utilities are recognized when incurred by direct write­
off. Although this is a departure from generally accepted accounting principles, historically such amounts 
have been immaterial. 

lnventori, 

Inventmy of the General Fund consists of expendable supplies held for consumption and is reported at 
cost. Expenditures are recognized when the items are purchased. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

Excess of expenditures over appropriations: 111ere was no amendment to the budget for the year ended 
September 30, 2021. No funds had revenues, expenditures, or transfers in excess of budgeted 
appropriations, and exceeding 5%. 

On Behalfof Pavments for Salaries 

Included in the General Fund financial statements are amounts paid by the State of Louisiana as 
supplemental salaries to the Town's policemen. The payments of $38,117 are included on the financial 
statements as Revenue and Public Safety Expenditures. 

Fund Balance and Equity Classifications 

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, establishes 
standards for five fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to 
which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources reported in 
government funds. 

Non-spendable Fund Balance - Classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are 
either (a) not in spendable form - prepaid items or inventories; or (b) legally or contractually required to 
be maintained intact. The spendable portion of the fund balance comprises the remaining four 
classifications: restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. 

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources either (a) 
externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed 
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed Fund Balance - These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints 
imposed by formal resolutions or ordinances of the Town alderman - the government's highest level of 
decision-making authority. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the 
Town aldermen remove the specified use by taking the same type of action imposing the commitment. 
This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund 
have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. 

Assigned Fund Balance - This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the Town's "intent" to be 
used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. The Town's aldeimen and 
management have the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. Assigned fund 
balances include all remaining amounts ( except negative balances) that are reported in govermnental 
funds, other than the general fund, that are not classified as non-spendable and are neither restricted nor 
committed. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - This fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. It is also 
used to report negative fund balances in other govermnental funds. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

The government-wide statement of net position reports $4,114,408 of restricted net position, all of which 
is restricted by enabling legislation. 

When both restricted and umestricted resources are available for use, it is the To'wn's policy to use 
externally restricted resomces first, then umestricted resources - committed, assigned and unassigned - in 
order as needed. 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets are reported for cash, money market mutual funds, or pooled deposits legally restricted 
for specified uses such as payment of debt service and fiscal fees on long-term debt. 

\\'hen both restricted and umestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then umestricted resources as needed. 

Accumulated Compensated Absences 

Allowable annual vacation and sick leave is prescribed by municipal ordinance, based on length of 
continuous employment by the Town, accrued on au employment anniversary basis, and accrued to 
specified maximums. Compensatory time is also granted to supervisory personnel in lieu of overtime 
pay. Employees may accumulate unused compensatory time which is paid to the employee in the form of 
time off or at the employee's current rate of pay upon separation from service. 

Estimated accrued compensated absences resulting from unused vacation and compensatory time at the 
end of the fiscal year are recorded as long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial statements in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences. No liability is 
recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. 

Compensated absences are paid from the General Fund that is responsible for all employees' 
compensation and are recorded in the fund financial statements only when payment is actually made. 

Balance and Equity Classifications 

In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: 

Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgage, notes, or 
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted assets - consists of assets with constraints placed on their use either by (1) external groups such 
as creditors, grautor, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or (2) law through 
constitutional provisions of enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted assets - all other assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investment in 
capital assets 11

• 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Long- term Liabilities 

Accrued compensated absences, outstanding debt, and the related accrued interest is reported as liabilities 
in the govenunent- wide financial statements. The fund financial statements recognize proceeds of debt 
as other financing sources of the current period. Expenditures for compensated absences, long-term debt 
principal, and interest payments are recorded in the fund financial statements only when payment is due. 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, infonnation about the fiduciary net position of the 
Municipal Police Employees Retirement System (the "Plans"), and additions to/deductions from the 
Plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plans. 
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions 

GASB approved Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Statement No. 
71, Pension Transition for Contributions Subsequent to the Afeasurement Date - an Amendment of GASE 
Statement No. 68. GASB Statement No. 68 addresses accounting and financial reporting for pensions that 
are provided to the employees of state and local governmental employers through pension plans that are 
administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet the criteria established by this standard. 
GASB Statement 71 requires a government employer to recognize a net pension liability measured as of a 
date ("measurement date") no earlier than the end of its prior fiscal year. If the government employer 
makes a contribution to a defined benefit plan between the measurement date of the reported net pension 

liability and the end of the government's reporting period, the government is required to recognize its 
contribution as a deferred outflow of resources. The provisions of GASB Statement No. 68 and GASB 
Statement No. 71 were implemented by the Town during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021. 

The Statement established standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of 
resources, deferred inflows of resources and expenses/expenditures. 

Defen·ed Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statements of net position report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies 
to future period and so will not be recognized as expenditure until then. In addition to liabilities, the 
statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate 
financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so 
will not be recognized as revenue until then. The Town's deferred outflows and deferred inflows are 
resources related to pensions. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affoct the 
reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Note 2 - Cash and Investments 

Statutes allow the Town to deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, or time 
deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law or any other state of the United States, as well as 
invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, or certificates. These are classified as investments if their 
matu,~ties exceed 90 days; however, if the maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash 
equivalents. 

At September 30, 2021, the Town's cash and cash equivalents were made up of petty cash of $370, and 
checking and savings accounts of $8,020,182, for a total of $8,020,552. Cash and cash equivalents of 
$2,775,954 included in this total is restricted and is shown as such on the Statement of Net Position. 

As of September 30, 2021, the Town had a total of$2,059,134 invested in certificates of deposit having 
maturities of more than 90 days. Certificates of deposit of $2,059,134 included in this total are restricted 
and are shown as such on the Statement of Net Position. 

The cash equivalents and investments of the To'.vn are subject to the following risks. 

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
investments. The Town does not have a policy addressing interest rate risk. 

Credit risk: under state law, the To'.vn may deposit funds with a fiscal agent organized under the laws of 
Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the union, or the laws of the United States. The Town may invest 
in United States bonds, treasury notes and bills, government backed agency securities or certificates and 
time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal officers in 
Louisiana. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in event of a bank failure, the government's deposit may not be 
returned to it. Louisiana Revised Statutes 39: 1218-1229 required the collateralization of local government 
deposits that are greater than the amount insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Coverage (FDIC) 
limit (currently $250,000 per institution). 

LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
Louisiana. Only local government entities having contracted to pa1ticipate in LAMP have an investment 
interest in its pools of assets. Investment earnings are shared by each fund on a pro rata basis according to 
its average cash balance. 
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LAMP is an investment pool that, to the extent practical, invest in a manner consistent with 
GASB Statement No. 79. The following facts are relevant for investment pools: 

• Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 

• Custodial risk: LAMP participants' investments in the pool are evidenced by shares 
of the pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categorized because 
they are not evidenced by securities that exist physical or book-entry form. The 
public entity's investment is with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool; 
therefore, no disclosure is required. 

• Concentration of credit risk: Pooled investments are excluded from the 5 percent 
disclosure requirement. 

• Interest rate risk: LAJ\.1P is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants 
immediate access to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk 
disclosure using the weighted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of 
LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days and consists of no securities 
with maturity in excess of 397 days or 762 days 
for U.S. Government floating/variable rate investments. 

• Foreign cunency risk: Not applicable. 

The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value. The fair value is determined on a weekly basis by 
LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pool is the same as the net value of the 
pool shares. LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of 
directors. LAMP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. 

Note 3 - Property Tax 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on October 1 
and payable December 31. The To'wn collects its own propet1y taxes. To\vn property tax revenues are 
recognized when levied to the extent that they result in cmTent receivables. 

The Town is permitted by the Municipal Finance Law of the state to levy taxes up to 11.67 mills on the 
total assessed value for the To'wn for governmental services other than the payment of principal and 
interest on long term debt and in required amounts for the payment of principal and interest on long term 
debt. 

For the year ended September 30, 2021, taxes of 11.75 mills were levied on property with taxable 
assessed valuations totaling $19,115,930 for a total of $224,613. The taxes were dedicated for general 
corporate purposes. 

36 



TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Note 4 - Capital Assets 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, for the primary 
government is as follows: 

Balance 

lO/l/2020 Additions Deletions 

Govermnental activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 284,161 $ $ 

Const:rnction in progress 488,888 24,000 

Other caprtal assets: 

Buildings 6,031,178 244,118 

Infrast:rncture 11,480,096 222,886 

Equipment 1,627,996 74,416 82,765 

Totals 19,912,319 565,420 82,765 

Less accumulated depreciation: 

Buildings 3,332,721 128,828 

Infrast:rncture 6,858,534 359,346 

Equipment 1328.523 90971 79,185 

Total accmrrulated depreciation 11519777 579 145 79,185 

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets, net $ 8 392 542 $ (13 725) $ 3 580 

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank) 
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Balance 

9/30/2021 

284,161 

512,888 

6,275,296 

11,702,982 

l,619,647 

20,394,974 

3,461,549 

7,217,880 

l,340)09 

12,019,737 
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Balance 
10/1/2020 

Additions Deletions 

Business-type activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 10,718 $ $ 

Land improvement 

Other capital assets: 
Buildings 551,224 

Infrastructure 30.563,714 51,897 

Equipment 990.579 70104 39274 

Totals 32,l 16J35 122.001 39J74 

Less accmnulated depreciation: 

Land improvement 18,256 1,904 

Buildings 291,126 8,749 

Infrastructure 8,413,888 699,618 

Equipment 786,677 42,293 39,274 

Total accumulated depreciation 9,509,947 752,564 39,274 

Business-type activities: 

Capital assets, net $ 22606288 $ (63o 563l 

Balance 
9/30/2021 

$ 10,718 

551,224 

30,615.611 

1,021,409 

32.198 962 

20,160 

299.875 

9,113,506 

789,696 

10,223,237 

$ 21975725 

Depreciation is computed on capital assets based on the estimated useful lives of the assets. The straight­
line method with no salvage value is used. Buildings and improvements are depreciated over 20 - 40 
years; water and sewer plant and related lines are depreciated over 25 - 50 years; all other equipment is 
depreciated over 5 - 15 years. Depreciation expense of $1,331,709 for the year ended September 30, 
2021 was charged to the following govermnental functions: 

Government activities: 

General Government $ 333,500 

Public Safety 142,070 

Streets 94,928 

Recreation 8,648 

Total $ 579,145 

Business-type activities: 
Water $ 752,564 
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Note 5 -Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 

The payables of$449,792 at September 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Total 

Activities Activities 
Account payable $ 146,782 $ 280,092 $ 426,874 

Accrued payroll and retirement expenses 14,705 8,213 22,918 

Total $ 161,487 $ 288,305 $ 449,792 

Note 6 - Certificates of Indebtedness and Bond Indebtedness 

Business Type Activities: 
Beginning 

Additions Reductions 
Ending Current 

Balance Balance Maturities 

Certificates of Indebtedness 

2021 Water Revenue Bonds $ 4,743,000 $ $ 433,000 $ 4JIO,000 $ 374,000 

2010 Revenue Bonds 6,307,000 547,000 5,760,000 550,638 

2015 Sewer Revenue Bonds 777,783 15,453 762,330 15,883 

2021 Sewer Revenue Bonds 1,238,395 44,566 27,961 1255,000 29,172 

Total $13066178 $ 44566 $ 1023414 $ 12087330 $ 969 693 

On August 1, 2006, the Town issued forty-year sewer revenue bonds in the amount of $1,523,000 for the 
purpose of funding sewerage system improvements, As of June 24, 2021, the Bond was refunded for 
amount of $1,255,000, Monthly installments of $6,671, including principal and interest, began January I, 
2022, Monthly sinking fund deposits of $6,671 are required through July 2046, Interest of $42,332 was 
paid during the year ended September 30, 202L Outstanding 2021 sewer revenue refunding bonds 
indebtedness for this issue as of September 30, 2021, amounted to $1,255,000, 

Future annual payment requirements on the 2006 sewer revenue bonds are as follows: 

Year ending Se2tember 30, Interest Principal Debt Service 
2022 $ 50,880 $ 29,172 $ 80,052 

2023 49,615 30,437 80,052 

2024 48,296 31.756 80,052 
2025 46,920 33,132 80,052 

2026 47,773 32,279 80,052 

Thereafter 535,429 1,098,224 1,633,653 

Total $ 778,913 $ 1,255,000 $ 2,033,913 
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During the year ended September 30, 2010, the Town issued twenty-year sewer revenue bonds in the 
amount of $11,000,000 for the purpose of funding improvements related to the expansion of sewerage 
capacity in order to acconunodate the new Lamb Weston facility. As of September 30, 2020, the To'.vn 
had received advances in the amount of $11,000,000. Outstanding bond indebtedness for this issue 
amounted to $5,760,000, as of September 30, 2021, and is included on the Proprietary Fund Statement of 
Net Position as Bonds Payable. These bonds call for annual principal payments beginning February 2012, 
and interest at .45% plus administrative fees at .50% payable on a semi-annual basis. The Town is 
required to make monthly Sinking Fund, Reserve Fund, and Contingency fund deposits for the 20!0 
issue. 

Both the 2006 and the 2010 sewer revenue bond issues were funded through Louisiana Department of 
Environmental Quality, therefore the Town has combined the monthly sinking fund, reserve fund, and 
contingency fund requirements for each issue. The To'.vn is now making one combined monthly sewer 
revenue sinking fund deposit to a single bank account titled USDA Debt Service, one combined monthly 
sewer revenue reserve fund deposit to a single bank account designated as 2006/2010 Sewer Revenue 
Bond Reserve Fund, and one combined monthly sewer revenue contingency fund deposit to a single bank 
account designated as 20 JO Sewer Revenue Bond. 

Contingency Fund 

As of September 30, 2021, the Sewer Revenue Sinking Fund had a balance of $842,363 available for 
funding of future 2006 and 2010 Sewer Revenue Bond principal, interest, and administrative fees. 

As of September 30, 2021, the 2006/2010 Sewer Revenue Bond Reserve Fund had a balance of$400,106 
and the 2010 Sewer Revenue Bond Contingency Fund had a balance of $158,588. Monthly sewer revenue 
bond sinking fund deposits of$57,242, including $6,671 for the 2006 bond issue, are to continue until the 
2010 bond issue is paid in full. Monthly sewer revenue bond sinking fund deposits of $6,671 "~II 
continue beyond the 2010 bond issue repayment until the 2006 bond issue is paid in full. According to 
the bond payment schedules, the 2006 Sewer Revenue Bond Reserve funding requirement has a cap of 
$80,049, and the 2010 Sewer Revenue Bond Reserve funding requirement has a cap of $301,852. As of 
September 30, 2021, the reserve requirements have been satisfied. The 2006 Sewer Revenue Bond 
requires monthly contingency fund now only requires deposits of $668 once since the $80,049 reserve 
fund cap has been met. The 20 l O Sewer Revenue Bond Contingency funding requirement of 5% of the 
Water System's sewer revenue for the preceding month has a $200,000 cap. As of September 30, 2021, 
the reserve requirements have been satisfied. The Town now has a combined contingency funding 
requirement of only $668 per month which will continue for the life of the sewer revenue bonds. 
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Estimated future annual principal, interest, and administrative fee payment requirements on the 2010 
Sewer Revenue Bonds are as follows: 

Interest Total 
Year ending September 30, and Fees Principal Debt Service 

2022 $ 31,677 $ 550,638 $ 582,315 

2023 28,648 553,666 546,288 
2024 25,603 556,711 5827114 

2025 22,541 559,773 5827114 

2026 19,462 562,852 582,314 
Thereafter 69,997 2,976,360 3,046,357 

Total $ $ 5,760,000 $ 5,921,902 

On the March 29, 2010, the Town also issued twenty-year water revenue bonds in the amount of 
$7,500,000 for the purpose of funding improvements related to expansion of water capacity in order to 
accommodate the Lamb Weston facility. These bonds call for annual principal payments beginning 
February 2012, and interest at 2.95% plus administrative fees at .50% payable on a semi-annual basis 
beginning August 2010. The Town is required to make monthly 2010 Water Revenue Bond Sinking Fund 
deposits beginning April 2010. The monthly sinking fund deposit requirements are approximately 
$43,800 through January 2031. 

As of June 24, 2021, the 2010 Water Revenue Bond was refunded for $4,310,000. the 2021 Water 
Revenue Refunding Bond Sinking Fund had a balance of $518,624 available for funding of future 2021 
Water Revenue Bond p1~ncipal, interest, and administrative fees. This 2010 bond issue also requires 
monthly Reserve Fund deposits of at least $4,358 until the fund reaches $261,493, and monthly 
Contingency Fund deposits equal to 5% of the Water System's water revenues for the preceding month 
until the contingency fund reaches $100,000. As of September 30, 2021, the 2021 Water Revenue 
Refunding Bond Reserve Fund had a balance of $8,589 and the 2021 Water Revenue Refunding Bond 
Contingency Fund had a balance of$174,929. As of September 30, 2021, the reserve requirements have 
been satisfied. 

Estimated future annual principal, interest, and administrative fee payment requirements on the 2010 
Water Revenue Bonds are as follows: 

Interest and Total Debt 
Year ending Se2tember 30, Fees Principal Service 

2022 $ 144,624 $ 374,000 $ 518,624 
2023 131,497 387,000 518,497 

2024 117,921 400,000 517,921 

2025 103,949 414,000 517,949 
2026 89,407 429,000 518,407 

Thereafter 286,522 2,306,000 2,592,522 

Total $ 
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During the year ended September 30, 2015, the Town issued forty-year sewer revenue bonds in the 
amount of $875,000 for the purpose of constructing and acquiring improvements and replacements to the 
sewerage system, including equipment and accessories. Outstanding bond indebtedness for this issue in 
the amount of $762,329 is included on the Proprietary Fund Statement of Net Position as Bonds Payable. 
These bonds call for annual payments of$36,648 beginning June I, 2017, at an interest of2.75%. 

This 2016 bond issue also requires monthly Debt Service Reserve Fund deposits equal to 10% of the 
monthly payment each month over the life of the loan until one annual installment has been accumulated. 
This reserve fund is required to establish an emergency fund for maintenance and repairs and debt 
repayment should the need arise. Ten percent of the proposed loan installment equals $331 per month. In 
addition, the Town must fund a depreciation reserve for short-lived assets by depositing a sum of $735 
monthly in addition to that required for the debt service reserve. 

Estimated future annual principal, interest, and administrative fee payment requirements on the 2015 
Sewer Revenue Bonds are as follows: 

Year ending September 30, 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
Thereafter 

Total 

Note 7 - Long-term Liabilities 

Principal 
15,883 
16,325 
16,780 
16,607 
17,090 

679,645 

$762,330 

The long-term liabilities for the year ended September 30, 2021, were as follows: 

Balance 

10/1/2020 Increase Decrease 

Net Pension Liability $ 918,025 $ $ (367,856) 

Compensated Absences 63,338 (18,658) 

Total $ 981,363 $ (386,514) 
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Note 8 - Interfund Receivables and Payables 

Interfund balances at September 30, 2021, were as follows: 

Fnnds 
Governmental Fund 

Proprietary Fund 

Total 

Note 9 - Interfund Transfers 

Receivables 
$ 6,473 

972 

$ 

Payables 
$ 972 

6,473 

$ 

Interfund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2021, were as follows: 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

Governmental Funds: 
General fund $ 876,772 $ 

Sales tax fund 8,610 336,772 

Capital project fund 8,610 
LCDBGFund 

Proprietary Funds: 
Enterprise fund 540,000 

Total $ 885,382 $ 885,382 

Note 10 - Sales Taxes 

Half Cent Sales Tax 

On July 15, 1980, a resolution was adopted for a half-cent sales tax for the Town. On September 13, 
1980, a special election was held to vote on the proposed sales tax. The sales tax was adopted by a vote 
of 523 to 404 and became effective November I, 1980, for ten years. It was renewed on November 6, 

1990 for ten years, again on November 3, 1998 for ten-years, again on September 8, 2008, and again on 
March 24, 2018 for an additional ten-year period. The revenue from this sales tax is dedicated as follows: 

1. The first $60,000 is dedicated to the maintenance, operation and addition to the Town's 
recreational facilities. 
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2. After satisfaction of the above, funds can be used in any of the areas listed below: 

A. Street, sidewalk, bridge, and alley maintenance and improvement 
B. Streetlight maintenance 
C. Garbage collection 
D. Police department 
E. Fire department 
F. Public parks 
G. Airport 
H. Real estate and equipment acquisition as related to the above 

One Cent Sales Tax 

On October 7, 1989, the voters of the Town approved a one-cent sales tax that became effective January 
1, 1990 for a period of ten years. The tax was renewed on November 3, 1998 for ten years, and on 
September 8, 2008 it was renewed for an additional ten-year period. The revenue from this tax is 
dedicated to streets, drainage and other capital improvements. 

Note 11 - Risk of Loss 

The Town is exposed to a variety of risks that may result in losses. These risks may include possible loss 
from acts of God, injury to employees, property damage, or breach of contract. The Town finances these 
potential losses through purchasing insurance from several commercial companies, as well as self­
insuring physical damage on its automobiles. The level of coverage has remained constant. The Town is 
not a member of a risk pool. All claims currently filed are adequately covered by the policies in place 
with no outstanding liabilities for the Town. 

Note 12 - Pension Plans and Other Pension Liabilities 

The Town of Delhi (the Town) is a participating employer in two cost sharing defined benefit pension 
plans. These plans are administered by the Municipal Employee's Retirement System of Louisiana 
(MERS) and Municipal Police Employee's Retirement System (MPERS). Article X, Section 29(F) of the 
Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of these 
plans to the State Legislature. Each system is administered by a separate board of trustees. Each of 
System issues an annual financial report that is available to the public which includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the Systems. These reports may be obtained by writing, 
calling, or downloading the reports as follows: 

MERS: 7937 Office Park Boulevard I Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 I www.mersla.com 
MPERS: 7722 Office Park Boulevard I Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 I www.lampers.org 
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Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS) 

The Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS) is the administrator of a cost sharing 
multiple employers defined benefit pension plan. The System was originally established by Act 356 of the 
1954 regular session of the Legislature of the State of Louisiana. The System provides retirement benefits 
to employees of all incorporated villages, towns and cities within the State which do not have their own 
retirement system, and which elect to become members of the System. For the year ended September 30, 
2020, there were 87 contributing municipalities in Plan A and 69 in Plan B. The To'.vn of Delhi is a 
participant in Plan B only. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) 

The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) is the administrator of a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer plan. Membership in the System is mandatory for any full-time police officer 
employed by a municipality of the State of Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement, empowered to 
make arrests, providing he or she does not have to pay social security and providing he or she meets the 
statutory criteria. The System provides retirement benefits for municipal police officers. The projections 
of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to 
current active and inactive employees through the System in accordance with benefit terms and any 
additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. Benefit 
provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211- 11:2233. 

Funding Policy 

Article X, Section 29(E)(2)(a) of the Louisiana Constitntion of 1974 assigns the Legislature the authority 
to detennine employee contributions. Employer contributions are actuarially detennined using statutm~ly 
established methods on an annual basis and are constitutionally required to cover the employer's portion 
of the normal cost and provide for the amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Employer 
contributions are adopted by the Legislature annually upon recommendation of the Public Retirement 
Systems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAC). 

Contributions to the plans are required and determined by State statute (which may be amended) and are 
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll. The contribution rates in effect for the year ended 
September 30, 2021, for the Town and covered employees were as follows: 

Plan 

MERS (Plan B) 

MPERS 

Town Employees 

15.50% 5.00% 
33. 75% 10.00% 

45 



TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

The contributions made to the Systems for the past two fiscal years were as followed: 

Plan 

MERS (Plan B) 
MPERS 

Total 

2021 

$ 85,498 
25,894 

$ 111,392 

2020 

$ 80,629 

26,562 

$107,191 

2019 

$ 91,707 
32,455 

$124,162 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Ontflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

The following schedule lists the Town's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability, and the 
allocation percentages were used in calculating each employer's proportionate share of pension amounts. 
The Town uses this measurement to record its Net Pension Liability and associated amounts as of 
September 30, 2021, in accordance with GASB Statement 68. The schedule also includes the 
proportionate share allocation rate used at June 30, 2021 along with the change compared to the June 30, 
2020 rate. The Town's proportion of the Net Pension Liability was based on a projection of the Agency's 
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined. 

Net Pension Current Previous 

Liability at June Measurement Measurement Increase 

30,2021 Rate Rate (Decrease) 
MERS $ 406,218 0.701211% 0.743152% (0.041941)% 

MPERS 143,951 0.027005% 0.026461% 0.00054% 

Total $ 

The following schedule lists each pension plan's recognized pension expense (benefit) for the Town for 
the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Municipal Employee's Retirement Fund $ 19,413 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement Fund 2,882 

Total $ 22,295 
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At September 30, 2021, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows of Resources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 

Net difference between projected and actual investment 

earnings on investments 

Changes of assm11ptions 

Changes in propmtion and clifferences between Town 

contributions and propmtionate share of contriliut:ions 

Town contributions subsequent to the measmement date 

Total defened outflows of resources 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 

Differences between expected and actual experlence 

Net difference between projected and actual investment 

earnings on :investments 

Changes of assumptions 

Changes in proportion and differences between Town 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

Total defened inflows of resomces 

$ 

$ 

$ 

MERS 

$ 

16,440 

MERS 

16,763 $ 

109,776 

58,446 

184,985 $ 

MPERS 

15,941 

3,470 

5,968 

!\,!PERS 

4,434 

67,214 

4,105 

24,812 

100,565 

$ 

$ 

$ 

TOTAL 

32,381 

3,470 

29,523 

TOTAL 

21,197 

176,990 

4,105 

83,258 

285,550 

The Town reported a total of $29,523 as deferred outflows of resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30, 2021, which will be recognized as a reduction in 
net pension liability in the year ended September 30, 2021. The following schedule lists the pension 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement period for each pension plan: 

Municipal Employee's Retirement Fund 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement Fund 

Total 
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Other amounts repm1ed as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ending June 30: MERS MPERS TOTAL 

2022 $ (66,667) $ (31,887) $ (98,554) 

2023 (34,831) (14,437) (49,268) 

2024 (28,472) (11,672) (40,144) 

2025 (38,577) (23,157) (61,734) 

Total $ (168,547) $ (81,153) $ (249,700) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability for 
each pension plan as of June 30, 2021, are as follows: 

Measurement/Valuation Date Expected Remaining Service Lives Investment Rate ofRetum 
MERS June 30, 2021 3 years 6.85%, netofpensionplaninvestment 

MPERS 

111ortality: 

MERS 

June 30, 2021 4 years 
expense, including inflation 

6.750%, net of investment expense 

Mortality rates for non-disabled are based on PubG-2010(B) Heathy Retiree Table set and PubG-2010(B) 
Employee Table set equal to 120% for males and females, each adjusted using their respective male and 
female MP2018 scales. 

Mortality rates for disabled are based on PubNS-2010(B) Disabled Retiree Table set equal to 120% for 
male and females with full generational MP2018 scale. 

MPERS 

Mortality rates for non-disabled are based on Pub-2010 Heathy Retiree Table set and PubG-2010 
Employee Table set equal to 115% for males and 125% females, each adjusted using their respective male 
and female MP2019 scales. 

Mortality rates for disabled are based on Pub-2010 Disabled Retiree Table set equal to 105% for male and 
115% for females with full generational projection using the MP2019 scale. 
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MERS 
Years of Service 

1-4 

Over4 

MPERS 
Years of Service 

1-2 

Above 2 

Salary Growth Rate 
7.4%-PlanB 

4.9%-Plan B 

Salary Growth Rate 

12.30% 
4.70% 

Cost of Living Adjustments: 

MERS 

The System is authorized under state law to grant a cost-ot~living increase to members who have been 
retired for at least one year. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original benefit for each full 
calendar year since retirement and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available from investment 
income in excess of normal requirements. State law allows the System to grant an additional cost of living 
increase to all retirees and beneficiaries who are age sixty-five and above equal to 2% of the benefit being 
received on October 1, 1977, or the original benefit, if retirement commenced after that date. 

MPERS 

The Board of Trustees is authorized to provide annual cost-of-living adjustments computed on the amount 
of the cun-ent regnlar retirement, disability, beneficiary or survivor's benefit, not to exceed 3% in any 
given year. The Board is authorized to provide an additional 2% COLA, computed on the member's 
original benefit, to all regular retirees, disability, survivors and beneficiaries who are 65 years of age or 
older on the cut-off date which determines eligibility. 

Discount Rate: 

The following methods used by each of the retirement systems in determining the long-term rate of return 
on pension plan investments: 

MERS 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return ( expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
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return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inllation of 2.6% and an 
adjustment for the effect of rebalancing / diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of return is 
6.95% for the plan year ended June 30, 2021. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability 
was 6.85%for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

MPERS 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash !lows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the actuarially 
determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the recmmnendation of the System's 
actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-tenn expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 

The following table provides a smmnary of the best estimates of arithmetic/geometric real rates of return 
for each major asset class included in each of the Retirement Systems target asset allocations as of June 
30, 2021: 

Long-Term Expected 
Target Allocations Real Rate of Return 

Asset Class MERS MPERS MERS MPERS 

Pub lie Equity 53% 2.31% 

Equity 55.5% 3.47% 
Public Fixed Income 38% 1.65% 
Fixed Income 30.5% 0.59% 
Alternatives 9% 14% 0.39% 1.01% 
Other 
Total 100% 100% 4.35% 5.08% 

Inllation 2.60% 2.22% 

Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 6.95% 7.30% 

The projection of cash !lows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions 
will be made at the current conti~bution rate and that sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to 
the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those 
assumptions, each of the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for MERS and 
MPERS were 6.85% and 6.75%, respectively for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
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Sensitivity to Changes in Disconnt Rate 

The following table presents the Town's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (NPL) using the 
discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the Town's proportionate share of the NPL 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage­
point higher than the current rate used by each of the Retirement Systems: 

MERS: 

MPERS: 

Discount Rates 

Net Pension Liability 

Discount Rates 
Net Pension Liability 

Payables to the System 

Changes in Discount Rate 

1% 
Decrease 

5.850% 
$623,222 

Current 
Discount Rate 

6.850% 
$406,218 

Changes in Discount Rate 
1% 

Decrease 

5.750% 
$250,885 

Current 

Discount Rate 

6.750% 
$143,951 

1% 
Increase 

7.850% 

$222,672 

1% 

Increase 

7.750% 
$54,698 

The Town recorded an accrued liability of $16,636, for the System for the year ended, September 30, 
2021, for the contractually required contribution for the month of September 2021. The amount is 
included in accounts and other payables in the statement of net position. 

Note 13 - Cooperative Endeavor Agreements 

On April 15, 2016, the Town and Delhi Area Fire Protection District No. 1 (the "District") entered into a 
cooperative endeavor agreement with Delhi Volunteer Fire Department, Inc. effective April 1, 2016, and 
remains in effect until terminated by one or both parties for the Town to defray the expenses or cost 
associated with furnishing fire protection to the citizens of the District. 

The Town agreed to pay the Fire Department a budgeted amount per month, with said budget to be 
approved annually by the Town of Delhi Town Council. 

Note 14 - Contingencies and Risk i\fanagement 

As of the date of this report, there were no pending or threatening litigation suits involving the Town. The 
Town is exposed to various risk of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town carries commercial 
insurance for all risks of loss, including workers' compensation and employee health and accident 
insurance. There were no significant reductions in the insurance coverage during the fiscal year. 
Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior fiscal 
years. 
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The Town participates in numerous state and federal grants programs, which are governed by various 
rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject 
to audit and adjustments by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the Town has not complied 
with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and 
the collectability of any related receivable as of September 30, 2021, may be impaired. In the opinion of 
Town management, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and 
regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the 
accompanying financial statements for such contingencies. 

Note 15 - COVID-19 Pandemic 

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a novel coronavirus 
("COVID-19") as a global pandemic, which continues to spread throughout the United States. The 
COVID-19 pandemic has negatively impacted the global economy and created significant volatility and 
disruption of financial markets. The extent of impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Town's 
operational and financial performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and 
spread of the outbreak and the impact on its investments, customers, employees and vendors, all of which 
are uncertain and cannot be predicted or reasonably estimated at this time. 
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REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Ad Valorem 

TO\VN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

GENERAL FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Original 
Bud0 et 

$ 215,000 

Final 
Bud0 et 

$ 215,000 
Other Taxes, Penalties, Interest, etc. 86,000 

232,000 

86,000 

232,000 Licenses and Permits 
Intergovernmental Revenues: 

State Funds: 

Transportation Funds 
Grants 
Police Supplemental Pay 

Fines 
Garbage Collection 
Other Revenues 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General Government 
Public safety 

Streets 
Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditmes 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures 

Other Financing Uses 
Transfers from Other Funds 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

FUND BALANCE 

Beginning of year 

End of year 

4,160 4,160 

90,000 90,000 
300,600 300,600 
120,269 120,269 

1,048,029 1,048,029 

1,010,826 1,010,826 
646,877 646,877 

459,964 459,964 

2,117,667 2,117,667 

(1,069,638) (1,069,638) 

1,070,000 1,070,000 

362 362 

Actual 

$ 226,325 

$ 

94,230 

233306 

4,160 
411,377 

38,117 

43,531 
303,995 
144,051 

1,499,091 

932,316 

562,987 

262,404 
563,005 

2320,711 

(821,620) 

876,772 

55,151 

2,354,258 

$ 2,409,409 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of required supplementary information. 
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Variance With 
Final Budget 

Favorable/ 
(Unfavorable) 

$ 

$ 

11,325 
8,230 

1,306 

411,377 
38,117 

(46-469) 
3,395 

23,782 

45L062 

78,510 
83,890 

197,560 
(563,005) 

(203,044) 

248,018 

(193,228) 

54,789 



TO\VN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

SALES TAX FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Original Final Favorable/ 

Budget Budset Actual {Unfavon1ble) 

REVEJ'iUES 
Taxes: 

Sales and Use: 

Sales Tax 112 cent $ 600.000 $ 600.000 $ 619,886 $ 19.886 
Sales Tax 1 cent 600.000 600,000 619.887 19,887 

Total Taxes 1.200,000 1,200.000 1,239,773 39.773 

Investment Earnings 8.120 8,120 2,010 (6,110) 

Total Revenues 1,208.120 1,208,120 1.241,783 33,663 

EXPENDITURES 
General Government: 118.298 118.298 82,110 36.188 
Public Safety 279.000 279,000 301,957 (22,957) 

Streets 2.000 2.000 2.000 

Recreation 23.000 23.000 20,012 2.988 
Capital Outlay 20,000 20,000 2,415 17,585 

Total Expenditures 442.298 442.298 406.494 35.804 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures 765.822 765,822 835,289 (2,141) 

Other Financing Uses 
Transfers Out (330.000) (330,000) {328,162) (1,838) 

Total Transfers (330.000) (330,000) (328,162) (1,838) 

Net Change in Fund Balance $ 435.822 $ 435,822 $ 507,127 $ (3,980) 

FUND BALANCE 
Beginning of year 2.988,862 

End of year $ 3,495,989 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of required supplementary information. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 

As of the fiscal year ended 

Employer 's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 

Employer' s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Employer's Covered Payroll 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Liability as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 

Of the Total Pension Liability 

As of the fiscal year ended 

Employer's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Employer's Covered Payroll 

Employer 's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Liability as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduc iary Net Position as a Percentage 

Of the Total Pension Liability 

As of the fiscal year ended 

Employer's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 

Employer 's Proportionate Share of the Net P ension Liability 

Employer 's Covered P ayroll 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Liability as a P ercentage of its Covered Payroll 

Plan F iduciary Net Position as a Percentage 

Of the Total Pension Liability 
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2021 

MERS (Plan B) 

0.7012% 

$ 406,218 

$ 583,377 

69.63% 

79. 14% 

2020 

MERS (Plan B) 

0.7432% 

$ 673,464 

$ 655,053 

102.81% 

66.26% 

2019 

MERS (Plan B) 

0.8846% 

$ 773,856 

$ 678,499 

114.05% 

64.68% 

MPERS 

0.0270% 

$ 143,951 

$ 88,656 

162.37% 

84.09% 

MPERS 

0.0278% 

$ 244,561 

$ 100,485 

243.38% 

70.94% 

MPERS 

0.0278% 

$ 252,116 

$ 100,605 

250.60% 

71.01% 



TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 

( continued) 

As ofthe fiscal year ended 

Employer' s Propo1t ion of the Net Pensioo Liability 

Employer's Propo1tionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Employer's Covered Payroll 

Employer' s Propo1tionate Share of the Net Pension 

Liability as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciaiy Net Position as a Percentage 

Of the Total Pensioo Liability 

As of the fiscal year ended 

Employer's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Employer's Covered Payroll 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Liability as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 

Of the Total Pension Liability 

2018 

MERS (Plan B) 

0.8581 % 

$ 725,807 

$ 648,987 

111.84% 

65.60% 

2017 

MERS (Plan B) 

0.8250% 

$ 713,841 

$ 619,585 

115.21% 

70.08% 

MPERS 

0.0376% 

$ 318,067 

$ 102,142 

311.40% 

71.89% 

MPERS 

0.0294% 

$ 256,439 

$ 87,054 

294.57% 

63.49% 

(1) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as available. 

(2) The amounts presented have a measurement date of MERS 's prior June 30°' fiscal year end. 

The two Retirement Systems reported in this schedule are as follows: 
MERS (Plan B) = Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
MPERS = Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

2021 

MERS (Plan B) MPERS 

Contractually Required Contribution $ 84,074 $ 27,809 

Contributions in Relation to Contractually Required contribution 85,498 25,894 

Contribution (Excess) Deficiency $ (1,424) $ 1,915 

Employer's Covered Employee Payroll 551,600 69,600 

Contributions as a% of Covered Employee Payroll 15.50% 37.20% 

2020 

MERS (Plan B) MPERS 

Contractually Required Contribution $ 80,629 $ 26,562 

Contributions in Relation to Contractually Required contribution 83,762 29,105 

Contribution (Excess) Deficiency $ (3,133) $ (2,543) 

Employer's Covered Employee Payroll 583,377 88,656 

Contributions as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 14.36% 32.83% 

2019 

MERS (Plan B) MPERS 

Contractually Required Contribution $ 94,674 $ 27,959 

Contributions in Relation to Contractually Required contribution 91,707 32,455 

Contribution (Excess) Deficiency $ 2,967 $ (4,496) 

Employer's Covered Employee Payroll 655,053 100,485 

Contributions as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 14.00% 32.30% 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

( continued) 

2018 

MERS (Plan B) MPERS 

Contractually Required Contribution $ 84,259 $ 34,142 

Contiibutions in Relation to Conti·actually Required conti·ibution 86,776 30,847 

Contlibution (Excess) Deficiency $ (2,517) $ 3,295 

Employer' s Covered Employee Payroll 648,987 102,142 

Conuibutions as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 13.37% 30.20% 

2017 

MERS (Plan B) MPERS 

Contractually Required Contribution $ 67,362 $ 27,859 

Contributions in Relation to Contractually Required contribution 71,276 27,364 

Contribution (Excess) Deficiency $ (3,914) $ 495 

Employer' s Covered Employee Payroll 619,585 87,054 

Contributions as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 11.51% 31.44% 

(1) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as 
available. 

The two Retirement Systems reported in this schedule are as follows: 
MERS (Plan B) = Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
MPERS = Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Note 1 - Budgets 

l. Budgetary and Budgetary Accounting 

The Town of Delhi follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

a. A proposed budget is prepared and submitted to the Town of Delhi for the fiscal year no 
later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 

b. A summary of the proposed budget is published, and the public is notified that the proposed 
budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called. 

c. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call 
for a hearing. 

d. After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and 
implement the budget, the budget is legally adopted prior to the commencement of the fiscal 
year for which the budget is being adopted. 

e. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

f. The budget is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). Budgeted amounts included in the accompanying financial statements are as 
originally adopted or as finally amended by the Town of Delhi. Such amendments, except for 
capital outlay, were not material in relation to the original appropriations. 

2. Basis of Accounting 

All the Town's budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Note 2 - Pension Plan - Net Pension Liability 

Changes of Benefit Terms 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (Plan B) 

No changes. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

No changes. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
(Continued) 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Changes of Assumptions 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (Plan B) 

In 2021 , the investment rate of return and inflation rate decreased from 6.95% to 6.85%. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

In 2021, the investment rate of return and inflation rate decreased from 6.95% to 6. 7 5%. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



TO\VN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Jesse Washington, Mayor 
October 1, 2020 - September 30, 2021 

Salary 
Benefits - Insurance 

Benefits - Retirement 

Car Allowance 
Per diem 
Reimbursements 
Travel 
Registration Fees 
Conference Travel 

Purpose 

Total Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head 

See Independent Auditors' Report, 
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s 

s 

Amount 

68,000 

10,540 

159 
250 

78,949 



TO\VN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID TO THE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
ALDERMAN 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

The schedule of compensation paid to the mayor and council members was prepared in compliance with 
House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Compensation of the 
mayor and council members are include in the general administrative expenditures of the general fund. The 
mayor and council members receive compensation pursuant to Louisiana Revised Stah1te 404.1. 

Jessie Washington, Mayor 

Larry Houston, Council Member 
Larry Rancher, Co1mcil ~1ember 
Ellen Oliver. Council Member 
Henry Washington, Council Member 
Lennon Whitney. Council Member 

Total Mayor's and Council Members' Compensation 

See Independent Auditors' Report. 
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$ 

$ 

Amount 

68,000 

7,200 
7,200 
7200 
7,200 
7,200 

104,000 



Insurance 
Company 

Community 
Financial 
Southern Fidelity 
Agency, Inc. 
National Union 
Fire 

La Municipal Risk 
Management 
Agency 

Risk Management 

Community 
Financial 

Guaranty Bank-
Southern Fidelity 

Community 
Financial 

Lloyd's/Lane & 
Associates 

Lane& 
Associates 
Underwritten By: 
Scottsdale 
Insurance Co. 

Community 
Financial 
Traveler's 

TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE 
As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

Policy 
Term Policy Description Policy Limits 

10/1/2020 Airport-General Liability 1,000,000 each occurrence 

10/1/2020 50,000 rented to you 
I , 000, 000 personal & 
advertising 
injury aggregate 

9/23/2021 Worker's Comp 100,000 each accident 
500,000 limit by disease 
100,000 by disease 

7/7/2020 General Liability 500,000 occurrence 
Law Enforcement 1,000 deductible 
Errors & Omission 
Auto Liability 

7/7/2020 Commercial Property 500,000 

7/7/2021 Commercial Property 500000, $1,000 ded 

10/1/2020 Crime Policy 118,000.00 
10/2/2021 Employee Theft 1,000 deductible 

10/14/2021 Auto Physical Damage V aries;Vehicle 

79,680 All covered property 
4/1/2021 Inland Marine-Equipment in one occurrence limit 

10/1/2020 Multi-Peril 
10/1/2021 Buildings 

Varies/Bldg. 

See Independent Auditors' Report. 
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Policy Number 

AP00322936225 

100-0452 

LAI 15383 

LA125468 

CCP003563821 

LMA1900130 

GLL1800200 

5683C771 



TOWN OF Delhi, LOUISIANA 

ruSTICE SYSTEM FUNDING SCHEDULE - RECEIVING ENTITY 
Year Ended September 30, 2021 

First Six Month 
Period Ended 

Cash Basis Presentation 03/31/2021 

La Dept of Public Safety $ 75 
American Municipal Services, Criminal Fines 6,177 
N-Court, Criminal Fines 7,003 
Town of Delhi, Criminal Fines 12,486 
Bond Fees 
Uary Utlley, Shentt~ Cnmmal hnes 

Total Receipts $ 25,741 

See Independent Auditors' Report. 
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Second Six 
Month Period 

Ended 
09/30/2021 

$ 125 
6,817 

8,651 

6,063 

160 
570 

$ 22,386 



TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

JUSTICE SYSTEM FUNDING SCHEDULE - COLLECTING/DISBURSING ENTITY 
Year Ended September 30, 2021 

First Sis Month 
Period Ended 

Second Six 
l\Ionth Period 

Cash Basis Presentation 3/3112021 Ended 09/30/2021 

Beginning Balance of Amounts Collected (i.e. cash on hand) 

Add: Collections 
Service/Collection Fees ( e.g. credit card fees. report fees. 3rd party service fees) 

Subtotal Collections 

Less: Disbursements To Governments & Nonprofits: 
Town of Delhi Five Dollar Fine Fee 
CMIS, Fine Fee 
LA COMM, Fine Fee 
LA JUDICIAL, Fine Fee 

Subtotal Disbursements/Retainage 

Total: Ending Balance of Amounts Collected hut not Disbursed/Retained 
(i.e. cash on hand) 

See Independent Auditors' Rep01i. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 924 

2,188 2,488 

2,188 2,488 

630 740 

294 372 

333 485 

7 17 

1,264 1,614 

924 $ 1,798 



INTERNAL CONTROL, COMPLIANCE, AND OTHER MATTERS 



OFFICES: 

2740 RUE DC IARDIN 

TE.100 
LAKE CHARI.ES 

LOUISIANA 7060S 

101 337. 4 78, 7902 
IFI 337- 47.8-3345 

S 100 WESTIIE l,MER 

UITE 231 
HOUSTON 

TEXAS 77056 

101 7 l 3- 588-4460 
m 713-966-6 ns 

WW\ \I.JWALKJ:RCO.COM 

MEMBER OF: 

I\MERIC,\t-J I N!>TITUTC O f 
ClRlll llD l'Ul!IIC AC.C.OUN rAN I :, 

J. WALKER & COMPANYArc 
ACCOI.JNTANr. AND ADV/ ·ans 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Jesse Washington, Mayor 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 

Town of Delhi, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund 
of the Town of Delhi, Louisiana as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021 , and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Delhi, 
Louisiana's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 22, 
2022. 

Internal Control over Financial Repo1·ting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of 
Delhi, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine 
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Town of Delhi, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Delhi, Louisiana's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there 
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity' s financial statements 
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is 
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Delhi, Louisiana's 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for 
any other purpose. 

fl. 'J(Jatfu & ~'I- rl'Pe 
Lake Charles, Louisiana 
March 22, 2022 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

I. Summarv of Auditors' Results 

a. Financial Statements 

1. The independent auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial 
statements of the Town ofDelhi, Louisiana. 

2. There were no control deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial 
statements and reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control 
over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other !,1atters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statements Pe,fonned in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standard,. 

3. There were no instances of noncompliance that is reported in the Independent 
Auditors' Repo11 on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other lvfatters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Perfonned in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

b. Federal A wards 

NIA 

c. Management Letter 

No management letter was issued 111 connection with the audit for the year ended 
September 30, 2021. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

II. Findings - Financial Statement Audit 

There were no current year findings. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 

III. Summary of Prior Year Fiudings 

There were no prior year findings. 
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